PLANNING COMMISSION
Meeting Minutes

Monday, July 24, 2023 — 7:00 pm

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
Commission Present: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Engdahl, Heath and Tiernan
Commission Absent: Commissioners Derby and Havel
Staff Present: Deputy Director of Community Development Steve Marshall, Senior Planner
Kaitlin Zitelli, Engineering Services Manager David Dammuller, and Assistant City Attorney
Jeff Walter

B. APPROVAL OF FINAL AGENDA
COMMISSION ACTION: Upon motion by Commissioner Tiernan and seconded by
Commissioner Dawson, the Planning Commission voted 5-0-0-2 via roll call to approve
the final agenda.
AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Engdahl, Heath and Tiernan
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Commissioners Derby and Havel
Motion carried.

C. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE

D. CONSENT ITEM - NONE

E. UNFINISHED AND OTHER BUSINESS - NONE

F. PUBLIC HEARING

F.1. MULLINEAUX RESIDENCE FENCING
P2022-064; DESIGN REVIEW
CEQA CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT — SECTION 15303
APN 140-091-20; 1846 CENTER ROAD

Page | 1 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

Senior Planner Zitelli presented the staff report.

The Appellant’s attorney Mr. Robert Rosborough reviewed the history of the project
and presented site photographs and discussed the points made in the written
appeal. He also stated the condition of approval requiring the fencing to be brought
into compliance within 60-days was unfair and too short. He also did not like the
indemnification language in the conditions and questioned the condition requiring
structural calculations for the fence over 7-feet in height.

Commissioner Tiernan asked planning staff about the condition requiring structural
calculations for the fence over 7-ft. in height.

Deputy Director Marshall responded the building division requires this for fences to
ensure they could withstand wind loads.

The public hearing was opened.

Joshua ldell stated that the biggest concern for him was the safety of his mother,
the Appellant, and that is why the fence should remain.

Erin Cipriani stated she lives on Fig Tree Lane and that there are many pedestrians
and increased traffic in the vicinity of Center Road and Fig Tree Lane. She stated
that a child had hit her husband’s car in the past and she has safety concerns over
the current location of the fence. She asked that the fence be altered to meet the
15-ft. setback to allow better visibility.

Griffin Cipriani said he grew up on Fig Tree Lane and always had to be careful of
traffic when riding his bike or walking, as well as driving; noted visibility being
impaired by picket fence.

Russ Cipriani said there are 3 portions of the fence, but his only concern was the
fence east of the trellis which was a safety issue. At different angles there is less
visibility between the fence pickets. He wanted to make sure the fence would not
be a safety hazard for drivers exiting Fig Tree Lane.

The public hearing was closed.

Mr. Rosborough stated that based on the staff mark-up of the site plan, it did not
appear as though the fence was located within the sight visibility triangle at Fig Tree
Lane.

Assistant City Attorney Walter explained the options for the Planning
Commissioners and explained the DRC decision.

Commissioner Crockett said he visited the site and that he is in support of Option 1
as stated in the staff report. He said the DRC gave the appellant lots of latitude and
fixing the remaining portion seems reasonable.

Page | 2 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

Commissioner Dawson said he also visited the site and drove down Fig Tree Lane.
He did not have an issue with the fence, however the mailboxes for both the
Appellant’s home and Fig Tree Lane created visual obstructions.

Commissioner Engdahl stated he drove by the property and noted the tree and
mailboxes near Fig Tree Lane and noted the Appellant had not obtained a permit
for the fence.

Commissioner Tiernan said he visited the site a few times. He expressed concern
that no permit had been obtained for the fence otherwise these issues could have
been addressed before money and time was spent on the fence. He asked if the
Planning Commission voted to have the fence meet zoning requirements, what
would happen?

Deputy Director Marshall said the matter would return to Code Enforcement, and
possibly court, if the City Council so directed staff. He also clarified that the only
fencing requiring a building permit was the fence over 7-feet in height.

Chair Heath said she agrees with the staff recommendation and there are a lot of
fences outside of the code. She said she visited the site and wanted to address the
mailboxes if there was a way. The appellant’s mailbox was most obstructive, and
the Fig Tree mailboxes were also an obstruction.

Commissioner Crockett said 60-days to correct modify the fence was acceptable.

Assistant City Attorney Walter said the indemnification language was standard and
that Mr. Rosborough had misunderstood the language.

Deputy Director Marshall said that staff can verify a plan approved by the Planning
Commission

Commissioner Tiernan suggested extending the time limit for the appellant to bring
the fence into compliance from 60 to 90-days. He asked if the time limit was in the
code.

Assistant City Attorney Walter said no. He suggested the Planning Commission
make a motion to approve the resolution, then make amendments to the resolution
to increase the time limit for compliance to 90-days, then to alter the fencing for
compliance with the zoning code.

Commissioner Tiernan made a motion to amend the condition to 90-days.

City Attorney Walter said to first make a motion to approve the resolution then
amend it.

Chair Heath asked if they could include the mailboxes in the motion.

Page | 3 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

Assistant City Attorney Walter said no, the mailbox was outside of the purview of
the commission, but they could direct staff to investigate the matter separately.

COMMISSION ACTION: Upon motion by Commissioner Tiernan and seconded
by Commissioner Crockett, the Planning Commission voted 5-0-0-2 via roll
call to adopt the draft resolution presented by staff and amended to allow 90-
days to correct the fencing.

AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Engdahl, Heath and Tiernan
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Derby and Havel

COMMISSION ACTION: Upon motion by Commissioner Tiernan and seconded
by Commissioner Daws, the Planning Commission voted 5-0-0-2 via roll call
to direct staff to review the mailboxes.

AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Engdahl, Heath and Tiernan
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Derby and Havel

G. GENERAL BUSINESS - NONE

H. COMMITTEE AND LIAISON REPORTS

Deputy Director Marshall reported that the Planning Commission hearing of August 14 would
include an appeal of a Design Review Commission approval, and possibly an update to the

City’s accessory dwelling unit (ADU) ordinance.

Chair Heath inquired about the status of the Housing Element.

Deputy Director Marshall said that staff is working on a response to HCD and there was nothing

substantive to report.

ADJOURNMENT

The Planning Commission adjourned the meeting at 8:37 PM.

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing minutes were duly adopted at the Planning

Commission meeting of March 25, 2024.

[Steve Marshall/

Steve Marshall, Deputy Director of Community Development

Page | 4

Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

